Public Document Pack

Democratic Services Section Chief Executive's Department Belfast City Council City Hall Belfast BT1 5GS

10th April, 2019

MEETING OF STRATEGIC POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Dear Alderman/Councillor,

In addition to those matters previously notified to you, the following items will also be considered at the meeting to be held at 9.30 am on Friday, 12th April, 2019.

Yours faithfully,

SUZANNE WYLIE

Chief Executive

AGENDA:

9. **Operational Issues**

- (c) Minutes of the Meeting of the Active Belfast Ltd. Board (Pages 1 4)
- (d) ABF The Soldiers' Charity D-Day Commemoration Concert (Pages 5 8)



ACTIVE BELFAST LIMITED BOARD

Monday, 8th April, 2019

MEETING OF ACTIVE BELFAST LIMITED BOARD

(Held in the Boardroom, Room 222, City Hall)

Attendees

Directors: Mr. J. McGuigan, Chairperson

Mr. P. Boyle

Mr. C. Kirkwood and Mr. K. O'Doherty

Officers: Mr. N. Munnis, Partnership Manager; and

Mr. C. McCann, Leisure Development Manager; Mr. G. Graham, Democratic Services Assistant.

GLL: Mr. G. Kirk, Regional Director; and

Ms. S. Owens, Marketing Manager.

Apologies

Apologies were reported on behalf of Councillor S. Corr, Mr. J. Higgins, Mrs. K. McCullough, Councillor P. McReynolds, Mr. R. Stewart, and Mr. G. Walls.

Minutes

The minutes of the meeting of 11th March were approved.

Matters Arising

Lessons Learned

The Board members noted that GLL would submit a lessons learned report, in respect of their Leisure Transformation Programme, to the next ABL board meeting, scheduled currently for August, 2019. The Chairperson reminded the members that the report had been requested at a previous Board meeting, following discussions on the various challenges faced during mobilisation in respect of the opening of the new Olympia centre.

Customer Cross Centre Usage

The Chairperson referred to the pre-paid targets for leisure attendance, which had been incorporated within the quarterly customer scorecard. He identified the requirement to incorporate customer cross centre usage into the quarter one statistical report, as a means to track customer mobility between the Council's various leisure facilities and the effectiveness of promotional activity and the Leisure Transformation Programme (LTP) centre USPs. The Board outlined the need to link the marketing and promotion of the Council's leisure facilities with a dedicated public transport system accepting however that, anticipating customer demand for such a service would present a challenge.

Declarations of Interest

Mr. C. Kirkwood declared an interest in respect of an update on the work of the Council's Sports Development Unit in that he was a member of the Board of the Irish Football Association.

Update on BCC Sports Development Unit

The Leisure Development Manager attended in connection with this item and he was welcomed by the Chairperson.

The Board was provided with an update on the extensive range of sports development activities delivered through the Council's Leisure Development Unit. The members were presented with an outline of the link between the various sports development initiatives and the Belfast Agenda.

The Leisure Development Manager reminded the Board of the co-funding arrangements in respect of the National Stadium and the collaborative work undertaken by the Department for Communities (DfC), the Council and the Irish Football Association (IFA). He referred specifically to the Stadium Community Benefits Initiative and of the plans to target under-represented groups including women girls, and older people. He informed the Board that agreement had been reached with the GAA to participate in the initiative and highlighted the need to produce a revised work plan to incorporate Gaelfast targets and outcomes.

The Leisure Development Manager provided the Board with information in respect of the Clubmark accreditation programme and the fact that eighty clubs had now been accreditated to that scheme. He referred also to the close working relationship between the Council and a range of governing bodies thereby improving the standards of leisure provision and the development of leisure inclusivity for all.

The Chairperson, on behalf of the Board, thanked the Leisure Development Manager for his informative update and he departed from the meeting.

Update on Leisure Transformation Programme

The GLL representatives attended in connection with this item and were welcomed by the Chairperson.

The Partnership Manager provided the Board with an update on the Leisure Transformation Programme (L.T.P.) capital build programme. The members of the Board were reminded that the L.T.P comprised two distinct strands, namely, the capital build programme and the service modernisation programme. The Board was advised that, as the three new leisure facilities identified within the current phase of the capital projects programme entered their final implementation stage, the focus would now, out of necessity, switch to mobilisation operational planning and business development issues. He referred specifically to the focus on mobilisation, marketing and business development as key operational objectives. In this regard, he suggested that GLL should take the lead in delivering future LTP updates and provide the Board with six monthly progress reports in regard to the aforementioned operational areas.

The Board noted the information which had been provided and the agreement by GLL to take the lead in providing the operational updates as requested. It was reported that Belfast City Council Property and Projects officers would be in attendance to present updates on the capital build programme.

The GLL representative stated that he was pleased to announce that, as a result of the capital build programme (Phase 1b), seventy five new full-time equivalent jobs would be created plus a similar number of additional casual positions in the area of coaching, programme delivery and holidal Gereation schemes. The Regional Director

reported further that recruitment and training initiatives were being developed with a range of strategic partners. The Regional Director stated further that, as part of the marketing strategy, GLL would issue a press release on the social and economic benefits associated with the capital build programme. The Partnership Manager agreed to distribute the job creation press release, to all Directors, on Tuesday, 9 April.

<u>Tier 2 Performance – Marketing and Communications</u>

The Marketing Manager provided the Board members with an update on the GLL Belfast partnership marketing plan incorporating the outputs for 2018/19. She referred to the key themes of the marketing plan, including attracting more people to make use of Gyms, Swimming pools and engagement in leisure activities generally. She referred to the importance of GLL's social enterprise commitment and of the marketing objectives associated with their campaign in respect of the promotion of adult health and fitness.

Student Campaign

The Board was provided with an outline of GLL's strategy to offer citywide access in respect of multi-sport participation as a means to promote its fitness participation campaign in a highly competitive market.

Jam Card Scheme

The members were advised of the launch and success of its 'Just a Minute' (JAM) card scheme, including its half price health and fitness campaign, for a period of one month, including other marketing strategies to promote health awareness and fitness participation.

Events

The Regional Director provided the Board with an update on the success of its recent award events, including the positive publicity in connection therewith. He referred specifically to the promotion of the Belfast City Marathon, including the Belfast Telegraph sports awards, which was sponsored by GLL.

The Board members noted the information which had been provided and congratulated the GLL representatives on the success of their various campaigns.

GLL Six-monthly Positive Impact

The Regional Director provided the Board with an update in regard to the positive impact of GLL in the delivery of leisure services in Belfast, covering the period to March The Board was presented with information in regard to GLL's four pillars, incorporating; Better Service, Better People, Better Communities and Better Business. The Board was informed that, since 1st January 2019, Belfast had achieved a positive uplift in regard to the new pre-paid membership sales, including increased membership growth. He highlighted the impact of the JAM (Just A Minute) card friendly scheme and the fact that the Belfast Partnership was the first provider in Northern Ireland and the United Kingdom to become JAM card friendly.

The members were provided with an overview in respect of the GLL team communication Day and the significant success and positive marketing attributed to that event. The Board was informed of the various achievements by GLL staff under a range of categories in recognition of their skill and commitment to customer service. The Regional Director advised the Board that Belfast had been successful in achieving Quest quality accreditation in ten of its centres during 2018 and outlined the significant achievement in sharing best practice learning across its various leisure facilities. Page 3

The Board congratulated GLL on its significant achievement and noted the improvements in staff/management relations which had made a significant difference to the customer experience and quality of service provided. The Board noted also the significant achievement by GLL in its fundraising campaign which had made a significant contribution to a range of charities, including Action Cancer.

The Board members, in consideration of the performance targets, suggested that the KPIs could be refreshed to meet new challenges and that this exercise should be included within the planned ABL Business Plan review process, previously agreed for the period August 2019-January 2020.

Policy and Procedure Alignment (Equality and Diversity)

The Partnership Manager provided the Board members with an annual confirmation statement in respect of GLL's Equality and Diversity policy and procedure alignment. As a result of that policy convergence it was reported that both GLL and Belfast City Council (BCC) equality and diversity positions were significantly aligned.

ABL Register of Members' Interests

The Partnership Manager provided the Board members with a copy of the 'Register of Members' Interests' forms, including a timetable, subject to agreement, in respect of their completion and return. It was agreed further that the Partnership Manager should proactively encourage 100% return by the next Board meeting, scheduled to be held in August, 2019.

Any Other Business

The Partnership Manager reported that the Aquatic Strategy had now been through the equality screening process and, as a result, had been 'screened out'. He stated that the final draft document, which had been approved by ABL and BCC, together with confirmation of the equality screening outcome, would be presented to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee on 12th April 2019. It was reported that, subject to ratification by the Council at the end of April, it was planned to hold a public launch of the strategy as soon as practicable after the Local Government Elections.

Chairperson

Agenda Item 9d

STRATEGIC POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE



Subjec	et:	ABF The S	oldiers' C	Charity D-	Day Comm	emoration	Conce	rt	
Date:		12 th April, 2	2019						
Report	ting Officer:			Democrati	ic Services	Manager			
	ct Officer:				ic Services				
Contac	or Officer.	Otepheniv	colory, L	Jemocrati	ic Oct vices	iviariagei			
Restricted Reports									
Is this report restricted?						Yes		No	X
If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?									
After Committee Decision									
After Council Decision									
Some time in the future									
	Never								
Call in									
Call-in									
Is the decision eligible for Call-in?									
Is the c	decision eligible for	Call-in?				Yes	X	No	
			ry of ma	in Issues		Yes	X	No	
1.0 1.1	Purpose of Repor	t or Summa							ıth
1.0	Purpose of Repor	t or Summa							oth
1.0 1.1	Purpose of Report To consider authori June, 2019.	t or Summa sing Membe							gth
1.0	Purpose of Report To consider authorit June, 2019. Recommendations	t or Summa sing Membe							oth .
1.0 1.1	Purpose of Report To consider authorit June, 2019. Recommendation The Committee is re	t or Summa sing Membe s s equested to	ers to atte	end the D-	Day Comm	emoration	Conce	rt on 8	gth .
1.0	Purpose of Report To consider authorit June, 2019. Recommendations	t or Summa sing Membe s s equested to	ers to atte	end the D-	Day Comm	emoration	Conce	rt on 8	oth
1.0	Purpose of Report To consider authorit June, 2019. Recommendation The Committee is re	t or Summa sing Membe s s equested to	ers to atte	end the D-	Day Comm	emoration	Conce	rt on 8	th .
1.0 1.1 2.0 2.1	Purpose of Report To consider authori June, 2019. Recommendation The Committee is recommender the	t or Summa sing Membe s s equested to	ers to atte	end the D-	Day Comm	emoration	Conce	rt on 8	ith .
1.0 1.1 2.0 2.1	Purpose of Report To consider authori June, 2019. Recommendation: The Committee is reconsider the	t or Summa sing Membe s s equested to	ers to atte	end the D-	Day Comm	emoration	Conce	rt on 8	gth
1.0 1.1 2.0 2.1	Purpose of Report To consider authori June, 2019. Recommendation: The Committee is reconsider the	s equested to	decide if	end the D-	to nominate	emoration e Members	Conce	rt on 8	
2.0 2.1 3.0	Purpose of Report To consider authori June, 2019. Recommendations The Committee is r	sing Members sequested to ematter and	decide if	end the D-	Day Comm	emoration e Members	Conce	rt on 8 end.	attend

3.1.2 The Committee will recall has it has previously approved the attendance of the Chairperson and the Deputy Chairperson plus one Member from the six main parties on the Council at events organised by the ABF Charity as follows: 1. The Centenary of the Battle of the Somme Event on 7th May, 2016; 2. The Ulster at War Concert on 24th March, 2018 3. The Ladies' Lunch Event on 11th September, 2018. 3.1.3 Members will note that this event takes place on 8th June, which is after the local elections on 2nd May. It would not be possible to nominate Members to attend until after the elections. However, the Committee may decide to reserve places for the incoming Chairperson and the Chairperson of the Committee who will be appointed at the Annual Council Meeting on 21st May and for a representative of each of the main Parties on the Council. The names of the nominees could then be given after the elections. 3.2 Financial & Resource Implications 3.2.1 A ticket costs £48 and the overall cost can be met through existing budgets. 3.3 Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Assessment None associated with this report. 3.3.1 4.0 **Appendices – Documents Attached** Appendix 1 - Letter from ABF The Soldiers' Charity



Patron Her Majesty The Queen

General Sir Mike Jackson GCB CBE DSO DL Chairman of Trustees
Lieutenant General Philip Jones
CB CBF

Chief Executive
Major General Martin Rulledge
CB OBF

ABF The Soldiers' Charity (NI)
Building 115
Thiepval Barracks

02892 678112 ni@soldierscharity.org soldierscharity.org

NI Councils Chief Executives

26th March 2019

Dear Sygame,

D-DAY COMMEMORATION CONCERT - 8 JUN 2019

Lisburn BT28 3NP

The year 2019 will be marked by ABF The Soldiers' Charity's 75th Anniversary, which also coincides with the 75th Anniversary of the OPERATION OVERLORD. We will commemorate both occasions with our own unique Flagship Concert at the Belfast Waterfront. 'D-DAY 75 – a Musical Commemoration of Ulster's Contribution to the Normandy Landings' will take place on Saturday 8th June 2019 at 8pm and will be a showcase of Northern Ireland's talent. The Guest of Honour will be Mrs Fionnuala Jay-O'Boyle, Her Majesty's Lord-Lieutenant of the City of Belfast. All proceeds from the show will go to help support soldiers, veterans and their families in times of need.

Notwithstanding local elections, we would like to invite Councillors and Staff from your authority to join us, as we travel back to the year 1944 in wartime Northern Ireland Garrison and hear tales of Ulster's brave soldiers as they prepare to assault Nazi occupied France, by both sea and air.

The evening, which promises to be a 'sell-out' event, will be hosted by popular News Anchor, Pamela Ballantine and will feature the Band, Bugles, Pipes and Drums of the Royal Irish Regiment, plus a number of other well-known local artistes performing popular music, songs and re-enactments from the 1940s era.

This should be a fantastic evening out. VIP Tickets are £48pp and will include top show seats, entry to a pre-show VIP reception and interval drinks and nibbles. Should your authority be able to accept, please let me know soonest and I will ensure that places are reserved and further details are sent out to you in due course. Spaces may be booked in advance for Council representation at the event and allocated later based on results of the election.

Best wishes,

David

Chief Executive's Office

Date: \$\int \forall \forall

David Forsey Regional Director (NI)



